
1 | P a g e 
 

 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
 

 

June 27, 2019 

2:00 p.m. 

EM Warwick Conservation Area  
 

1. First Nations Acknowledgement 
2. Call to Order 
3. Adoption of Agenda 
4. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
5. !ǇǇǊƻǾŀƭ ƻŦ tǊŜǾƛƻǳǎ aŜŜǘƛƴƎ aƛƴǳǘŜǎ ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ. 3 

5.1) Board of Directors Meeting Minutes ς April 18, 2019 (Previously circulated)ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 3 
6. Business Arising from the Minutes 
7. PresentationsΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 7 

7.1) Communications & Outreach, and Conservation Area Lands ς Training Session No. 2.Χ... 7 
7.2)  Trillium Feasibility Update ς CǊŜŘ Dŀƭƭƻǿŀȅ !ǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜǎΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 7 

8. .ǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ŦƻǊ !ǇǇǊƻǾŀƭΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 8 
 8.1) Budget vs Revenue and Expenditures for the period ending April 30, 2019ΧΧ..ΧΧΧΧΧ.. 8 
 8.2) Window Well Openings ς tƻƭƛŎȅΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 10 
 8.3)  Camper Rules ς tƻƭƛŎȅΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 12 
 8.4) Cannabis Use ς tƻƭƛŎȅΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦ 14  
 8.5) Bill 108 CommentsΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 15 
9. .ǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ŦƻǊ LƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 18 
 9.1) Executive Committee Minutes ς a) April 26, 2019 and b) May 24, 2019ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ. 18 
 9.2) ²ŀǘŜǊ aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.. 26 
 9.3) Regulations and PlanƴƛƴƎΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 30 
 9.4) /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǊŜŀǎΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 37 
 9.5) /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ {ŜǊǾƛŎŜǎΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ. 41 
 9.6) /ƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ wŜƭŀǘƛƻƴǎΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΦΦ 46 
 9.7) /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅ 9ŘǳŎŀǘƛƻƴΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ. 50 
 9.8) Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee Minutes ς November 22, 2018ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.. 52 
 9.9) Wheatley Two Creeks Association Minutes ς April 4, 2019 & May 2, 2019ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.. 57 
 9.10) CAOΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 57 
10. CorrespondenceΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.ΧΧΧΧΧΧ. 59 

10.1) CO Comments: ά.ƛƭƭ млу ς Schedule 12, proposed More Homes, More Choice Act:   
  !ƳŜƴŘƳŜƴǘǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ tƭŀƴƴƛƴƎ !ŎǘέΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ 59 
10.2)  CO CommentsΥ aƻŘŜǊƴƛȊƛƴƎ hƴǘŀǊƛƻΩǎ ŜƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ ŀǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳ ς  
   Environmental Assessment Act (ERO#013-51лнύΣ 5ƛǎŎǳǎǎƛƻƴ ǇŀǇŜǊΥ aƻŘŜǊƴƛȊƛƴƎ hƴǘŀǊƛƻΩǎ    
   environmental assessment program (ERO#013-5101), and Schedule 6 of Bill 108, More  
   Homes, More Choice Act, 2019ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.. 63 

A G E N D A 



2 | P a g e 
 

10.3) Canadian Cancer Society Mudmoiselle 2019 EventΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.Χ.ΧΧΦ 70 
10.4) Climate change, now Doug Ford cuts, raise flood fears ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.ΧΧΧ 71 
10.5) Government of Ontario Commits to Increasing Province Flood Resilience ΧΧΧΧΧ.ΧΧ... 76 
10.6) Conservation Authorities: On the front lines reducing flood risk in OntarioΧ.ΧΧΧΧΧ.... 77 
10.7) ¦ǇŘŀǘŜŘ ŦƭƻƻŘ Ǉƭŀƛƴ ƳŀǇǎ ǿƛƭƭ ǎŜƴŘ ǘƘŜ ƘƻǳǎƛƴƎ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ ǳƴŘŜǊǿŀǘŜǊ ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.ΧΧ.. 80 
10.8) Tax levies, subsidies could pay for high-risk flood insurance, report saysΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ. 85 
10.9) Preventing Contamination and Depletion of Our Drinking Water Sources ΧΧ.ΧΧΧΧ..ΧΦ 87 
10.10) MECP - Harmful Algal BloomsΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ. 89 

11. Events CalendarΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ..ΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ. 94 
12. Other BusinessΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.. 95 
13. AdjournmentΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧΧ.. 95 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

We will begin by acknowledging that the land on which we gather is the traditional territory of First 
Nations people who have longstanding relationships to the land, water and region of southwestern 

Ontario.  We also acknowledge the local lower Thames River watershed communities of this area which 
ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ /ƘƛǇǇŜǿŀΩǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¢ƘŀƳŜǎ CƛǊǎǘ bŀǘƛƻƴΣ hƴŜƛŘŀ bŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ¢ƘŀƳŜǎΣ aǳƴǎŜŜ 5ŜƭŀǿŀǊŜ bŀǘƛƻƴ 

and Delaware Nation at Moraviantown.  We value the significant historical and contemporary 
contributions of local and regional First Nations and all of the Original peoples of Turtle Island (North 

America). We are thankful for the opportunity to live, learn and share with mutual respect and 
appreciation. 

 

  



3 | P a g e 
 

5. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 

5.1)  Board of Directors Meeting Minutes ï April 18, 2019 

 



4 | P a g e 
 

 

 

 



5 | P a g e 
 

 

 



6 | P a g e 
 

 

 

 



7 | P a g e 
 

7. Presentations  

7.1)  Communication and Outreach, and Conservation Area Lands ï Training 

Session No. 2 

Bonnie Carey and Randall Van Wagner will be providing a power point presentation on the [¢±/!Ωǎ Communications and 

Outreach, and CA Land programs respectively. 

 

7.2)  Trillium Feasibility Update ï Fred Galloway Associates 

  



8 | P a g e 
 

8. Business for Approval 

8.1)  Budget vs Revenue and Expenditures for the period ending May 31, 2019 
 
Background: 
 
Review the 2019 Budget to the Revenue and Expenditures for the 4 months ended April 30th, 2019.  
 

REVENUE 2019 2019 BUDGET 
 

2019 
ACTUAL 

$ VARIANCE 

 
BUDGET 

APR 
PROJECTED 

  TO APR 30 
TO 

PROJECTED 

      GRANTS 939,253 313,084 * 556,571 243,487 

GENERAL LEVY 1,433,781 1,433,781 ^ 1,391,344 (42,437) 

DIRECT SPECIAL BENEFIT 205,000 205,000 ^ 205,000 0 

GENERAL REVENUES 627,490 209,163 * 154,126 (55,037) 

FOUNDATION GRANTS & REVENUES 0 0 * 0 0 

RESERVES 0 0 * 0 0 

 
          

CASH FUNDING 3,205,524 2,161,028 
 

2,307,041 146,013 

      
OTHER 0 0 

 
0 0 

TOTAL FUNDING 3,205,524 2,161,028   2,307,041 146,013 

*-based on a 4 of 12 month proration of the budget 

^-based on cash received to June 11th, 2019 

 
Grant income is greater than budget due to the reversal of deferred revenue for on going programs and the timing of 
grants invoiced, including several large grants for Wetland projects.   
Note: Grant income is based on funds received/invoiced and not matched to expenses, meaning there may be expenses 
outstanding and not recognized in the attached expense statement.  At year-end, each grant is reviewed individually and 
unspent funds are reduced from grant income and deferred for future expenditures. 

Levy revenue is shown on a cash basis.  The following municipalities are paid in full as of June 11th, 2019:  Chatham-Kent, 
Dutton-Dunwich, Lakeshore, Leamington, London, Middlesex Centre, Southwest Middlesex, Southwold and West-Elgin. 

General Revenue is below budget due to the following factors: 

¶ Conservation Area revenues; Conservation Education and SKA-NAH-DOHT Village revenues; and Conservation 
Services and the Chatham Kent Greening are lower as most activities and income are received in summer.  This 
is partially off-set by Planning & Regulations being above budget. 

Foundation Grants and Revenues is below budget as there is normally a settlement for the memorial tree programs at 

the end of the year. 

Reserves are zero as this account is used to balance the accounts at year-end if expenses are greater than revenues.  

EXPENSES 2019 2019 BUDGET 
2019 

ACTUAL 
$ VARIANCE 

 
BUDGET 

APR 
PROJECTED 

TO APR 30 
TO 

PROJECTED 

WATER MANAGEMENT 
    

FLOOD CONTROL STRUCTURES 212,371 70,790 59,651 (11,139) 

EROSION CONTROL STRUCTURES 11 4 4 0 

FLOOD FORECASTING AND WARNING 162,935 54,312 77,070 22,758 

TECHNICAL STUDIES 76,535 25,512 4,063 (21,449) 

PLANNING & REGULATIONS 238,056 79,352 57,676 (21,676) 

WATERSHED MONITORING (PGMN) 137,336 45,779 8,678 (37,101) 



9 | P a g e 
 

SOURCE PROTECTION 26,892 8,964 17,639 8,675 

THAMES MOUTH DEBRIS REMOVAL 0 0 0 0 

     Water Management Subtotal 854,136 213,534 165,213 (48,321) 

     CONSERVATION & RECREATION PROPERTIES 
    

CONSERVATION AREAS 745,144 248,381 168,759 (79,622) 

     COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND EDUCATION 
    

COMMUNITY RELATIONS 176,815 58,938 56,187 (2,751) 

CONSERVATION EDUCATION 100,066 33,355 34,488 1,133 

SKA-NAH-DOHT VILLAGE 206,843 68,948 53,271 (15,677) 

     Community Relations & Education Subtotal 483,724 161,241 143,946 (17,295) 

     CONSERVATION SERVICES/STEWARDSHIP 
    

CONSERVATION SERVICES (FORESTRY) 102,892 34,297 16,429 (17,868) 

CHATHAM-KENT GREENING PROJECT 628,839 209,613 156,658 (52,955) 

PHOSPHORUS REDUCTION 334,509 111,503 278,429 166,926 

SPECIES AT RISK 56,278 18,759 50,231 31,472 

     Conservation Services/Stewardship Subtotal 1,122,518 374,172 501,747 127,575 

     CAPITAL/MISCELLANEOUS 
    ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

REPAIRS/UPGRADES 
0 0 0 0 

UNION GAS CENTENNIAL PROJECT 0 0 0 0 

EMPLOYMENT PROGRAMS (FED/PROV) 0 0 0 0 

     Capital/Miscellaneous Subtotal 0 0 0 0 

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,205,522 997,328 979,665 (17,663) 

 
Water Management 

Flood Control Structures and Erosion Control Structures are below budget as most large projects are performed during 
the summer months but slightly offset due to the expenses incurred from the February flood and some damn repairs. 

Flood Forecasting and Warning expenses are above budget due to the costs and human resources required for the 
February flood. 

Technical Studies are below budget due to the timing of hiring a GIS technician and his time charged to Species at Risk to 
complete the grant requirements of that program. 

Planning and Regulations are below budget due to the February flood event and staff time spent responding to the flood 

Watershed Monitoring is below budget due to the staff time being spent on other programs and waiting on further 
funding for this program. 

Source Protection is above budget due increased activity to complete work before the provincial year-end. 

Conservation Areas 

Conservation area expenses are below budget as most large projects, operation of the campgrounds and other large 
operational costs are incurred during the summer months. 

Community Relations and Education 

SKA-NAH-DOHT Museum and Village is below budget due to the seasonal nature of large activities in this program.  
Community Relations and Conservation Education is comparable to budget. 

Conservation Services/Stewardship 

Conservation Services (Forestry) and Chatham-Kent Greening expenses are below budget as most activities and related 
expenses are completed during the spring and summer months.   

Phosphorous Reduction is above budget due mostly to one transfer payment of $45k to the University of Waterloo, one 
transfer payment to $60k to University of Guelph for research services performed, wages and expenses related to an 



10 | P a g e 
 

Environment Canada and Canadian Adaptation Council grant and ALUS Middlesex received after the budget was created 
and not reflected in the budget. 

Species at Risk is above budget due to the wages of the GIS Technician required to complete the project for the program 
ending Mar 31 and only 6 months of the program being budgeted for with the allocation over 12 months.  Budget spent 
to fully utilize grant funding. 

Capital/Miscellaneous 

No Capital/Miscellaneous expenses to date. 
 
Summary: 

 
2019 2019 BUDGET 

2019 
ACTUAL 

$ VARIANCE 

 
BUDGET 

APR 
PROJECTED 

TO APR 30 
TO 

PROJECTED 

     TOTAL CASH FUNDING 3,205,524 2,161,028 2,307,041 146,013 

     
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,205,522 997,328 979,665 (17,663) 

 
        

OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 2 1,163,700 1,327,376 163,676 

     LESS:  ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL 
ASSET 

0 0 0 0 

     NET CASH FUNDING SURPLUS 
(DEFICIT) 

2 1,163,700 1,327,376 163,676 

 

Note:  The difference between the projected budget funding and projected budget expenditures is due to the 
recognition of the full General Levy and Special Levy versus all other income and expenses are prorated for the period. 

At April 30thΣ нлмфΣ [¢±/!Ωǎ ƻǇŜrating surplus is slightly more favourable than the projected budget as more grants have 
been received than budgeted and less expenditures compared to budget due to the seasonal nature of a large amount 
of the Conservation Authorities expenses.   
 
Recommendation: That the Board of Directors receives the Budget vs Revenue and Expenditures report for the 
period ended April 30th, 2019. 
 
 
Recommended: 
Todd Casier 
Financial Services Supervisor 
 
Reviewed: 
Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 

 
 

8.2) Window Well Openings ï Policy 
 
Window Wells as a means of Flood Proofing 

Additional wording to the Operational Guideline ς Window wells below RFD 

 
Staff have had several inquiries about alternatives for flood proofing requirements for new homes.  The current 
requirements are as follows: 
 



11 | P a g e 
 

1) Minimum openings into the proposed dwelling (ex: door sills, basement window sills, and/or crawl space 
ǾŜƴǘǎύ Ƴǳǎǘ ōŜ ŀǘ ƻǊ ŀōƻǾŜ ǘƘŜ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǘƻǊȅ ŦƭƻƻŘ ŘŀǘǳƳ όάwC5έύΦ 

2) The ground surface around the proposed dwelling must be at or above the RFD for a minimum distance of two 
meters around the structure. 

 
Typically, these requests arise from situations where there is a proposed structure on a vacant lot in-between existing 
residential homes (an infill lot) and the existing neighbouring homes do not meet current flood proofing requirements.  
This situation results in the new home and the ground around it being set at a substantially higher elevation than the 
neighbouring lots.  Concerns arise around lot drainage onto the lower neighbouring properties, particularly where the 
lot size is constrained.   
 
Currently, staff are advising applicants of the existing requirements and that staff cannot approve anything above and 
beyond what is noted in our Operational Guidelines.  To mitigate lot drainage concerns, staff recommend that applicants 
should construct retaining walls and drainage swales between the properties.  Staff also inform the applicant that the 
applicant has a right to request a hearing before the Executive Committee if they do not agree with the approval 
conditions. 
 
Staff reached out to Essex Region Conservation Authority for advice on what their policies allow for and they provided 
the following wording as a guideline that they use in situations where basement windows/crawl space vents are 
proposed to be located below the finished grade elevation: 
 
There are five options to consider when openings (ex:  basement windows/crawl space vents) into the structure are 
requested below the minimum flood proofing datum: 
 
1)       The sill elevation of the basement windows are raised to the required minimum flood proofing datum; 
2)      A basement window sill can be below the regulatory flood datum provided that there is a permanent poured 

concrete window well set to the elevation of the required minimum flood proofing datum; 
3)       Grouted-in glass blocks are used instead of the window; 
4)       The windows are removed from the design; or, 
5)       A combination of any of the above four noted options. 
 
Please note, the use of metal window wells is a temporary flood proofing measure and are not usually approved unless 
the existing grade is well above the required minimum provincial flood proofing elevation. 
 

  E-2019-12  T. Thompson ς P. Tiessen 
 Moved that the Executive Committee approve the draft wording (noted below) to be incorporated into 

ǘƘŜ [¢±/!Ωǎ hǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ DǳƛŘŜƭƛƴŜǎΤ ŀƴŘ 
 

  That the draft wording be placed on the LTVCA website for public review and comment; and further 
 

 That the draft policy be brought to the next Board of Directors meeting for review and approval. 
 

Draft Wording for Guideline: 
 

There are five options to consider when openings (ex:  basement windows/crawl space vents) 
into the structure are requested below the minimum flood proofing datum: 

 
1)       The sill elevation of the basement windows are raised to the required minimum flood 

proofing datum; 
2)      A basement window sill can be below the regulatory flood datum provided that there is a 

permanent poured concrete window well set to the elevation of the required minimum 
flood proofing datum; 

3)       Grouted-in glass blocks (water sealed) are used instead of the window if no window well is 
provided; 



12 | P a g e 
 

4)       The below flood datum windows are removed from the design; or, 
5)       A combination of any of the above four noted options. 

 
 Please note, the use of metal window wells is a temporary flood proofing measure and is not usually 

approved unless the existing grade is well above the required minimum regulatory flood proofing 
elevation. 

 
 CARRIED 

 
 
Recommended: 
Jason Wintermute 
Supervisor, Water Management 
 
Reviewed: 
Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 
 

 
 

8.3)  Camper Rules ï Policy 
 
2019 Updated Camper Rules ς LTVCA all areas 
 
! ǊŜǾƛǎŜŘ ŎŀƳǇŜǊΩǎ ǊǳƭŜǎ ǇŀŎƪŀƎŜ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ǳǇŘŀǘŜŘ ǘƻ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜ ŀƭƭ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ [¢±/!Ωǎ /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǊŜŀǎΣ ŀǘǘŀŎƘŜŘ ōŜƭƻǿΦ 
 
 

 
 

 
Camper Rules 

 
Before making a reservation through our online reservation system, please familiarize yourself with the following 
rules: 
 

1. Camp site permit holders are subject to all rules and regulations which govern the use of the Conservation Area.  
! ŎƻǇȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜǎŜ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴǎ Ƴŀȅ ōŜ ƻōǘŀƛƴŜŘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅΩǎ !ŘƳƛƴƛǎǘǊŀǘƛƻƴ hŦŦƛŎŜΣ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ 
Area District Supervisor and is available on the LTVCA website.  Violation of these regulations or the below 
camping rules may result in the cancellation of the camping permit. 

2. All camping reservations require the signature/acceptance of terms and conditions of a person 18 years 
of age or older at the time the permit is issued. The person signing the permit must occupy the site. 

3. All camping reservations (serviced or un-serviced campsite) require full payment of the Camping Fee for 
the entire duration of stay at the time that reservation is made. 

4. In case of multiple reservations for the same time period, each campsite must be registered under the 
name of the actual occupant. 

5. Any changes to reservation dates, change of campsite, or cancellation requires notice 24 hours prior of 
reservation date. (A 100% refund will apply).  If reservation changed within 24 hours of reservation date, 
no refund will be provided. 

6. The campsite permit authorizes 5 persons per site excluding additional family units (family units must 
consist of children under 18), designated in the permit.   

7. Permit allows one main camping unit (i.e. trailer / RV, tent trailer or tent) one additional tent or eating 
area and two vehicles (second vehicle at additional cost), to occupy a campsite. 



13 | P a g e 
 

8. Display permit on the site numbered post. 
9. Camping is only permitted in the designated camping areas. 
10. Hydro service is provided to the main campsite unit only, where applicable. 
11. ¢ƘŜ [¢±/! ƛǎ ƴƻǘ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƭŜ ŦƻǊ ŀƴȅ ƭƻǎǎΣ ǘƘŜŦǘ ƻǊ ŘŀƳŀƎŜ ǘƻ ŎŀƳǇŜǊǎΩ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅΦ 
12. Help keep the Conservation Area clean, dispose of all garbage in designated garbage disposal areas, and 

please recycle where possible. 
13. Firewood can be purchased at entrance building at CM Wilson and can be ordered and delivered upon 

date of arrival for all other areas. Please do not collect wood (live or dead) from the forest.  Please do not 
bring firewood into or out of the Conservation Area due to invasive species concerns.  Only approved 
sources will be allowed into the area and/or approved wood certified by the Canadian Food Inspection 
Agency (CFIA) http://www.inspection.gc.ca/plants/forestry/don-t-move-
firewood/firewood/eng/1330963478693/1330963579986  

14. No person shall remove, prune, injure or destroy any tree, shrub, plant or other living thing in the 
Conservation Area. 

15. No person shall remove or destroy any man made material object or natural feature found within the 
Conservation Area. 

16. Rowdy behaviour, excess noise or swearing will not be tolerated. 
17. No generators will be permitted on the sites. 
18. Respect posted speed limits.  Curving roadways and trees may obstruct your view.  Pedestrians may be 

walking on the roadways and/or dart out from trail paths onto roadways. 
19. Quiet hours:  excessive noise will not be permitted between the hours of 11 PM to 7 AM. 
20. In an effort to ensure a water supply to our visitors, lawn watering, washing of cars or trailers without the 
5ƛǎǘǊƛŎǘ {ǳǇŜǊǾƛǎƻǊΩǎ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŀƭ ƛǎ ǇǊƻƘƛōƛǘŜŘΦ 

21. All pet owners must ensure that their pet does not make excessive noise or disturb other campers and 
that they are on a leash at all times.  Pets are prohibited in any of the washrooms, showers or beach area.  
No more than two pets are permitted on a campsite.  Pet owners must comply with all provincial 
legislation or local by-laws with respect to ownership and control of their pets.  All dogs must have up-to-
date dog tags on collars at all times.  You are responsible to clean up after your pet. 

22. Feeding or disturbing wildlife is prohibited.  Store food in your vehicle or animal resistant containers. 
23. Beach and water features are unsupervised.  Use at own risk.  Parents / guardians are responsible for 
ǘƘŜƛǊ ŎƘƛƭŘǊŜƴΩǎ ǎŀŦŜǘȅΦ 

24. On-site discharge of grey water or sewage tanks is prohibited unless discharged into a LTVCA approved 
facility. 

25. Campground visitors (other than permit holders) must leave the Conservation Area by 11:00 pm. 
26. The LTVCA reserves the right to evict, without a refund, any or all persons whose conduct or actions are 

detrimental to the operation of the campground and the enjoyment of the public.  Upon such 
cancellation, hydro service will be disconnected.  

27. A camper MUST NOT ATTEMPT to sell, transfer, lease, sublet, or assign the campsite and the 
responsibilities, privileges, and obligations provided under a Permit, in total or in part, to another person, 
unless given approval by the District Supervisor.  

28. A $150.00 site cleanup fee will be charged to the site owner if left in an un-kept state at the end of the 
stay. 
 

Fees 
 

For a complete list of fees please consult our fee schedules.  
 

Campsite maximums and other info 
 

Your campsite fee entitles you to the following: 

¶ One picnic table per site. 

¶ Parking for one vehicle per site (a second vehicle per site is allowed for an additional fee). 

¶ One fire pit per site. 

http://www.inspection.gc.ca/plants/forestry/don-t-move-firewood/firewood/eng/1330963478693/1330963579986
http://www.inspection.gc.ca/plants/forestry/don-t-move-firewood/firewood/eng/1330963478693/1330963579986


14 | P a g e 
 

¶ Three pieces of equipment allowed on campsite; including one piece of equipment with wheels (camper 
or trailer) and dining shelter. A maximum of two sleeping units is allowed per campsite. 

¶ A maximum of five people per site (additional family members allowed see rule #6). 

¶ Check-in after 2 p.m. on arrival date. 

¶ Campsite must be vacated by noon on departure date. 

¶ Group camping will limited to 35 persons or at the discretion of the District Supervisor 
 

If any maximum is exceeded, another campsite is required. 
 
Date of last revision: May 2019 
 

  E-2019-14  T. Thompson ς P. Tiessen  
 Moved that the above update to the Camper Rules be implemented in the 2019 camping season. 
 

 CARRIED 
 
 
Recommended: Reviewed: 
Randall Van Wagner Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
Manager, Conservation Lands and Services C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 

 
 

8.4) Cannabis Use ï Policy 
 
Proposed Policy ς Cannabis Use in Conservation Areas 
 

Cannabis 
 

Cannabis is legalized and strictly regulated in Canada.  It is your responsibility to understand federal, provincial, and 
municipal regulations for cannabis use.   
 

Provincial and municipal cannabis legislation applies to all LTVCA conservation areas.  Understanding local laws on 
cannabis use is important when planning your stay / visit. 
 

Where cannabis can be used 
 

1. In LTVCA campgrounŘǎΣ Ŏŀƴƴŀōƛǎ ŎƻƴǎǳƳǇǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ƭƛƳƛǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǾƛǎƛǘƻǊΩǎ ŎŀƳǇǎƛǘŜΦ 
2. Consumption is not permitted in campground common areas (such as beaches, playgrounds, pavilions, day use 

areas, washrooms, trails, or roads.) 
 

Alcohol 
 

1. In LTVCA campgrounds, alcohol consumptioƴ ƛǎ ƭƛƳƛǘŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǾƛǎƛǘƻǊΩǎ ŎŀƳǇǎƛǘŜΦ 
2. Alcohol is not allowed at beaches, playgrounds, pavilions, day use areas, washrooms, trails, or roads. 
3. During certain periods of the year, specific campgrounds may have temporary alcohol bans in effect. These will 

be identified through notices posted online and at the campgrounds. 
 

Smoking and Vaping 
 

1. Be aware of provincial smoking and vaping regulations regarding distances from buildings, playgrounds, and 
other facilities. 

2. Cannabis is legalized and strictly regulated in Canada.  It is your responsibility to understand federal, provincial, 
and municipal regulations for cannabis use. 

 



15 | P a g e 
 

Outside of LTVCA campgrounds and within other LTVCA Conservation Areas 
 

Public cannabis and alcohol consumption rules differ. Find details below, and always check the official regulations for the 
province and municipality you will be visiting. 
 

ω  Public use (including day-use areas): Not Allowed 
ω  Registered campsites: Allowed 
ω  Campground common areas: Not allowed 
ω  Trails:  Not Allowed 
ω  Playgrounds: Not allowed  
 

  E-2019-13  C. Cowell ς R. Leatham 
 Moved that the above Cannabis Use in Conservation Areas policy be implemented for the 2019 

camping season, and further that a revised policy be developed to address designated smoking and 
vaping areas and brought back before the Executive Committee for consideration. 

 

 CARRIED 
 
Recommended: 
Randall Van Wagner 
Manager, Conservation Lands and Services 
 
Reviewed: 
Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 
 

8.5) Bill 108 Comments 
 
Bill 108 Comments, LTVCA Response  
 
Modernizing Conservation Authorities (report initially received at the April 18, 2019 board of Directors meeting)  
 

¦ƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘƛŜǎ !Ŏǘ ό/!!ύ hƴǘŀǊƛƻΩǎ ос /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘƛŜǎ ǿŜǊŜ ŎǊŜŀǘŜŘ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǉǳŜst of 
municipalities and are governed by a board appointed by member municipalities. Conservation Authorities are tasked 
with delivery of local resource management programs at a watershed scale.  
 

The mandate of Conservation Authorities is defined in sectiƻƴ нл ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŀŎǘ ό/!!ύ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ άƻōƧŜŎǘǎέ ƻŦ ŀƴ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅΥ 
20 (1) The objects of an authority are to provide, in the area over which it has jurisdiction, programs and services 
designed to further the conservation, restoration, development and management of natural resources other than gas, 
oil, coal and minerals.  R.S.O. 1990, c. C.27, s. 20; 2017, c. 23, Sched. 4, s. 18. 
 

Over the last few years, a number of changes and updates have been undertaken to modernize Conservation 
Authorities. Many changes were brought forward with the passing of Bill 139, which made changes to the Conservation 
Authorities Act. These changes were supported by all parties of the legislature.  A number of changes in Bill 139 and 
were not implemented by the end of the last government. The current government is moving forward with these 
changes. 
 

The updates to the act and CA programs were due to a number of concerns expressed by Ontarians including: 
ω Some municipalities are concerned about the cost to fund Conservation Authorities 
ω Developers and landowners are concerned about the complexity and burden of regulations in the 

development industry and how the Conservation Authorities regulations can be simplified 
ω Not all programs are being delivered consistently across the province  
ω All parties wish to increase customer service and accountability  



16 | P a g e 
 

ω ¢ƘŜ tǊƻǾƛƴŎƛŀƭ !ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ǊŜǇƻǊǘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ bƛŀƎŀǊŀ tŜƴƛƴǎǳƭŀ /ƻƴǎŜǊǾŀǘƛƻƴ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅ  ōǊƻǳƎƘǘ ǘƻ ƭƛƎƘǘ ŀ ƴǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ 
issues around governance and board accountability 

 

As extreme weather, particularly heavy rains and flooding become more frequent due to climate change, a concern that 
hits home in the LTVCA watershed, Conservation Authority work in flood plain management is increasingly important. 
Conservation Authorities play an important role in OƴǘŀǊƛƻΩǎ ƭŀƴŘ ǳǎŜ ǇƭŀƴƴƛƴƎ ŀƴŘ ŜƴǾƛǊƻƴƳŜƴǘŀƭ ǇǊƻǘŜŎǘƛƻƴ ǇǊƻŎŜǎǎΦ 
CAs not only help protect people and property from extreme weather such as flooding and other natural hazards, but 
they also protect drinking water sources and work to conserve natural resources.  
 

The Province of Ontario has defined a number of core programs and services for Conservation Authorities to deliver 
consistently across the province. This does not mean that local municipalities and CA boards cannot also deliver 
programs to meet local needs. The province is consulting with stakeholders and the public to determine how CAs can 
improve delivery of provincially defined core programs and services. In doing this, the province has a number of 
proposals: 
 

Proposed Legislative Amendments 
ω Define the provincially required core mandatory programs and services to be offered by all CAs regarding 

natural hazard protection and management, conservation and management of CA lands, and source water 
protection 

ω Increase transparency in how CAs levy municipalities for mandatory and non-mandatory programs and services 
ω Update the CAA to conform with modern transparency standards  - 
ω Provide a transitionary period for CAs to sign long term MOUs with municipalities to define levy for provincially 

non-mandatory programs and services 
ω Enable the minister to appoint auditors to review CAs 
ω Clarify that the duty of CA board members is to act in the best interest of the CA, similar to not-for-profit 

organizations 
 

Proposals regarding Development permitting 
 

Ontario is proposing to: 
ω Update definitions in the act and regulations to align with natural hazard management intent of the regulation 
ω Clarify restrictions around wetlands that do not help mitigate risks of flooding 
ω Exempt low risk development activities from requiring a permit 
ω Allow CAs to exempt other low risk activities reform requiring a permit 
ω Require CAs to consult when making development policies and have these available to the public 
ω Require CAs too notify the public when regulated areas change i.e. flood plains and erosion areas  
ω Require CAs to establish, monitor and report on service deliver standards 
 

To proceed with these proposals, two new postings have been made to the Environmental Registry of Ontario that will 
implement the changes: (links with provincial statements regarding each posting) 
 

Modernizing conservation authority operations - Conservation Authorities Act 
 

Proposes to introduce amendments to the Conservation Authorities Act, which if passed, would help conservation 
authorities focus and deliver on their core mandate, and to improve governance. 
Deadline for Comments:  May 20, 2019 
 

Focusing conservation authority development permits on the protection of people and property 
 

Proposes a regulation that outlines how conservation authorities permit development and other activities for impacts to 
natural hazards and public safety. The proposed regulation will make rules for development in hazardous areas more 
consistent to support faster, more predictable and less costly approvals. 
 
 

https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/013-5018
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/013-4992


17 | P a g e 
 

In Summary 
 

Many of the proposed changes will benefit the CAs and a number of elements have already been or are being addressed 
at the LTVCA.  We look forward to working with Conservation Ontario and the provincial government to continue the 
modernization and updating of Conservation Authorities that was begun in 2017.  
 

!ǘǘŀŎƘŜŘ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ [¢±/!Ωǎ ŎƻǊǊŜǎǇƻƴŘŜƴŎŜ ŀƴŘ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎŜ ǘŀōƭŜ ǘƘŀǘ ǿŀǎ ǎŜƴǘ to Mr. Alex McLeod, Minister of Natural 
Resources and Forestry for EBR Postings 013-5018 - Modernization of Conservation Authority Operations and to 
Schedule 2 Bill 108 (Attachment #1), and 013-4992 - Amendment to Conservation Authorities Regulations for 
Development Permits (Attachment #2). 
 

  E-2019-15  C. Cowell ς P. Tiessen  
 Moved that the submission and response table regarding EBR Postings 013-5018 - Modernization of 

Conservation Authority Operations and to Schedule 2 Bill 108 (Attachment #1), and 013-4992 - 
Amendment to Conservation Authorities Regulations for Development Permits (Attachment #2) be 
endorsed by the LTVCA Executive Committee. 

 
 CARRIED 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted  
Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
C.A.O. / Secretary Treasurer 

 

  



18 | P a g e 
 

9. Business for Information 

9.1) a)  Executive Committee Minutes ï April  26, 2019 

 



19 | P a g e 
 

 

 



20 | P a g e 
 

 



21 | P a g e 
 

 

  



22 | P a g e 
 

9.1) b) Executive Committee Minutes ï May 24, 2019 

 

 



23 | P a g e 
 

 

 



24 | P a g e 
 

 

 



25 | P a g e 
 

 

 

 



26 | P a g e 
 

9.2) Water Management 

9.2.1) Lake Erie Action Plan 

 
On May 23rd, LTVCA staff attended a meeting of the Canada-Ontario Lake Erie Action Plan (LEAP) Implementation Team.  
As an agency which made commitments to the LEAP, the LTVCA is a member of the Implementation Team, along with 
our neighbouring Conservation Authorities and our member municipalities of Leamington and London.  Due to the 
change in provincial government, there were delays in reconvening the Implementation Team and the deadline was 
ƳƛǎǎŜŘ ŦƻǊ ŎƻƳƳƛǘƳŜƴǘ 9нΥм ά/ŀƴŀŘŀ ŀƴŘ hƴǘŀǊƛƻ ǿƛƭƭ ōǳƛƭŘ ƻƴ ŜȄƛǎǘƛƴƎ ƎƻǾŜǊƴŀƴŎŜ ǎǘǊǳŎǘǳǊŜǎ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǇŀǊǘƴŜǊ 
participation in the implementation of the action plan. Parties identified in the plan will work together to develop a 
workplan by February 2019 that establishes timelines for actions and expected phosphorus reductions (as applicable), 
identifies lead agencies, and determines the invŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘέΦ  ²ƻǊƪ ƻƴ ǘƘƛǎ !Ŏǘƛƻƴ tƭŀƴ Ƙŀǎ ǊŜǎǘŀǊǘŜŘ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ 
LTVCA has been working on its contribution to the Action Plan starting with quantifying all the phosphorous reduction 
efforts taken by the LTVCA since 2008 and attempting to outline its future funded commitments and unfunded potential 
ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎΦ  ²ƻǊƪ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ [¢±/!Ωǎ ƻǘƘŜǊ ŎƻƳƳƛǘƳŜƴǘǎ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜΦ    

 
9.2.2) Flood Forecasting and Operations 

 
There have been 27 flood messages issued since the last Board of Directors agenda was drafted.  These messages 
covered a broad range of water related hazards.  There were: 3 Safety Bulletins for Lake Erie, 3 Safety Bulletins covering 
both Lake Erie and Lake St. Clair, 1 Flood Outlook for Lake Erie and 1 for Lake St. Clair, 6 Flood Watches for Lake Erie, 2 
Flood Watches for both Lake Erie and Lake St. Clair and 4 Flood Warnings for Lake Erie.  For the Thames River and/or its 
tributaries, there were 2 Safety Bulletins, 2 Flood Outlooks, and 1 Flood Watch.  There was 1 Flood Outlook and 1 Flood 
Watch issued for both the Lake Erie and local watercourses together.   
 
The Indian-McGregor Creek Diversion was operated only once since the last Board of Directors agenda was drafted.  This 
occurred between April 20th and April 22nd.  It was brought to the attention of LTVCA staff that the operation of the 
Diversion Dam came up as a topic of discussion at a recent town hall meeting of South Kent residents on May 7th.  
(LTVCA staff were not present at the meeting.)  Some residents/farmers expressed concerns that the dam was being 
operated prematurely.  A response was drafted and provided to the local municipal councillors.        
 
The nature of flooding has changed significantly since last year due to high water levels.  Water levels on Lake Erie and 
Lake St. Clair have broken records.  The record high monthly mean water levels for May were broken on both Lake Erie 
and Lake St. Clair.  Based on preliminary numbers, this May broke the overall record high monthly mean water level on 
Lake Erie.  On Lake St. Clair, the monthly mean water levels for May were only 7 cm below the overall high set in 
October of 1986.  However, entering June, average daily mean water levels were within 1 or 2 cm of that record monthly 
mean. 
 

 



27 | P a g e 
 

 

 
 
Over the last few years on Lake Erie, the primary area of flooding had been Erie Shore Drive.  The flooding along Erie 
Shore Drive was primarily due to waves hitting the shoreline protection and spraying up onto the land.  This repeated 
action would end up putting significant amounts of water on the land and cause flooding.  A similar effect can happen 
down near Wheatley.  Over the last few years residents along Erie Shore Drive have made modifications to their 
properties that have helped decrease the impacts.  While this type of flooding still occurs along Erie Shore Drive, with 
the higher water levels there are now more issues around Rondeau Bay.  Water levels are very near ground level around 
Rondeau Bay including around the communities of Erieau and Shrewsbury.  Some low lying properties in Shrewsbury 
constantly have water on them.  The constantly high water table is also causing problems for basements, crawlspaces 
and septic systems.  On top of that, when there are strong winds out of the northeast or east, water is pushed to the 
west end of the lake which raises water levels around the bay.  The even higher water levels, and the waves produced by 
those winds, can cause flooding on the bay side of Erieau and from the bay and canals in Shrewsbury.  High water levels 
have also caused problems for shoreline protections and even municipal diking works in the area.  Most recently, the 
flooding that occurred early on June 15th caused damage to the Erie Shore Drive roadway.  The road had to be closed 
until further notice.  Rose Beach line had already been closed due to shoreline erosion.   
 
High water levels on Lake St. Clair have also caused problems.  The high water is causing issues for low lying properties 
around Lighthouse Cove.  As a result, one low spot on Mariners Drive now constantly has water on it.  Haven Avenue 
frequently requires pumping to keep the water down.  The high water table is also causing problems for basements, 
crawlspaces and septic systems.  There are a few homes in the area that seem to have constant flooding issues.  The 
[¢±/!Ωǎ ƻǿƴ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ at the Lighthouse is having problems with water in the basement.  Strong winds out of the west 
and northwest will push water across the lake and cause elevated water levels in the Lighthouse Cove area and the 
shoreline along Chatham-Kent.  This can cause the water levels in the canals to rise and cause flooding.  The waves 
produced by those high winds can also cause erosion and produce flooding when waves overtop shoreline protection 
works or spray from the waves hitting shoreline protection works overtops them.    High water levels have also caused 
problems for shoreline protection and municipal diking works in this area as well.  Most recently, in the late afternoon 
and evening of May 10th, and during the evening and overnight of May 13th/14th, Lighthouse Cove saw some of the worst 
lake-related flooding it has seen in many years.  In addition to the previously mentioned roads, there was water on 
Tisdelle Drive (south of Melody Drive), Tisdelle Drive (north of Lakeside Drive) and Crest River Avenue from the canals, 
and on 3rd Street and Island Crescent from the lake.      



28 | P a g e 
 

 
The effect of these high lake levels is not limited to shoreline areas.  Smaller watercourses that drain into Rondeau Bay 
are much more susceptible to rain events because their downstream ends are already filled with lake water.  There have 
also been issues with sand being pushed up into the drains along the Lake Erie shoreline, blocking them and causing 
flooding upstream.   
 
The high water levels on Lake St. Clair are also having an impact on the Thames River itself.  With normal lake levels, the 
low lying river flats from Thamesville downstream would almost never see water without a large event originating in the 
Upper Thames.  With lake levels so high, water levels in the downstream areas of the Thames River are always elevated 
and heavy local rainfalls can now raise the river enough to cover the sidewalk in downtown Chatham with little notice.  
This has also contributed to increased flooding risk on the Thames River itself from more traditional spring melts or ice 
jam events.                   
 
In addition to these increased flooding risks, there are also increased risks of damage to shoreline protection works and 
erosion.  In addition to those areas mentioned above, all shoreline areas are at increased risk from erosion including the 
high bluff areas.   
 

9.2.3) Flood Control Structures  

 
wŜƎǳƭŀǊ ǎŜŀǎƻƴŀƭ ƳŀƛƴǘŜƴŀƴŎŜ ŎƻƴǘƛƴǳŜǎ ƻƴ ŀƭƭ ǘƘŜ !ǳǘƘƻǊƛǘȅΩǎ ŦƭƻƻŘ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭ ǎǘǊuctures.  Beyond this, the primary activity 
recently with regard to the structures has been debris removal.  The frequent rains have led to lots of debris getting 
ŦƭǳǎƘŜŘ ƛƴǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊŜƎƛƻƴΩǎ ǿŀǘŜǊŎƻǳǊǎŜǎΦ  .ǳǘ ǘƘŜ ƘƛƎƘ ƭŀƪŜ ƭŜǾŜƭǎ ŀƴŘ ǊŜǎǳƭǘƛƴƎ ōŀŎƪǿŀǘŜǊ ƛƴ the watercourses have led to 
sluggish flows and the debris is getting hung up or blown around by winds rather than washing away.  Staff have had to 
go out on multiple occasions to clean out debris around the 6th Street Dam and the Diversion Dam.   

 
 
9.2.4) Low Water Response Program 

 
During the spring, summer and autumn, brief reports outlining the watershed conditions as they relate to the Low 
Water Response Program are created by LTVCA staff.  During the winter, as demand for water across the watershed is 
significantly less, these reports are not created.  With the extremely wet spring, the LTVCA has not yet generated a low 
water report.  However, the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry does broad screening throughout the province 
all year long for the program.  Based on that screening, the Lower Thames watershed was not in any type of low water 
condition.      

 
9.2.5) Watershed Monitoring  

 
Watershed wide surface water quality monitoring continues on a monthly basis at 22 sites throughout the watershed.  
In addition to the usual surface water quality monitoring, benthic invertebrate monitoring was conducted in May.  
Benthic monitoring is conducted in partnership with the University of Windsor as part of Masters level research to 
determine the most appropriate methods of conducting benthic sampling in the unique 
clay plains of southwestern Ontario. 
 
Dan Bittman was hired in early May to fill the Watershed Monitoring Specialist (formerly 
Water Quality Specialist) position. Dan has environmental degrees from Wilfrid Laurier 
University and the University of Western Ontario. He has more than five years of 
experience monitoring water resources and species-at-risk at the Ausable Bayfield 
Conservation Authority, Upper Thames River Conservation Authority, and Town of Fort 
Erie. Dan also teaches statistics as an adjunct facility at Nipissing University.  As the LTVCA 
Watershed Monitoring Specialist, Dan is responsible for overseeing and conducting 
monitoring of pertinent watershed environmental conditions within the LTVCA 
jurisdiction, ensuring subwatershed water quality and quantity monitoring stations remain 
operational, managing the PWQMN and PGMN programs, and assisting with managing the 



29 | P a g e 
 

ƳƻƴƛǘƻǊƛƴƎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ aŎDǊŜƎƻǊ ŀƴŘ WŜŀƴŜǘǘŜΩǎ /reek Phosphorus Reduction Program. Dan is excited to bring his experience 
to LTVCA to help understand, and improve, water conditions throughout the watershed.  

 
9.2.6) Harmful Algal Blooms  

 
Both the western basin of Lake Erie and Lake St. Clair suffer from a risk of Harmful Algal Blooms (HABs).  These blooms 
are composed of cyanobacteria that can produce toxins under certain conditions. The ones spoken about most 
frequently are Microcystis and its toxin Microcystin-LR.  Generally speaking, the blooms in Lake St. Clair are fed by 
nutrients from the Thames River, whereas the blooms in the open waters of the western basin are fed by the Maumee 
River.  However, nearshore blooms on the Canadian side of Lake Erie are also fed by Canadian sources.   
 
The algae season is considered to be from June through October.  Staff from the Ministry of Environment, Conservation 
and Parks (MECP) were out sampling for HABs on Lake Erie during the week of June 10th and on Lake St. Clair the week 
of June 17th.  Throughout the rest of the algae season MECP will be sampling every 2 weeks.  Standard Operating 
Procedures for drinking water intakes on the lakes are being revised this year for microcystin sampling.  (See 
correspondence).   
 
Leading up to the algae bloom season, the U.S. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration issues forecasts for 
the bloom season.  The most recent forecast was from June 11th and can be found in correspondence.  Current 
forecasts are suggesting a bloom substantially larger than last year and something similar to 2017.  
 
Reports from the public regarding HABs are to be directed to the Spills Action Centre (SAC) at 1-866-MOE-TIPS (663-
8477).  
 
 

 
Recommended: 
Jason Wintermute 
Water Management/GIS Specialist 
 
Reviewed: 
Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  



30 | P a g e 
 

9.3) Regulations and Planning 

9.3.1) Chatham-Kent Shoreline Management Study 

 
On April 10th, the first public meetings were held for the Chatham-Kent Shoreline Management Study at Erieau Fire 
Station #14, in the Multi-Purpose Room.  The meeting was extremely well attended and for the afternoon session 
people had to be turned away as the room capacity had been exceeded.  To compensate for this, a second afternoon 
session was added at the last minute.  One of the sessions was recorded and posted online.  Overall for the 3 sessions 
there were somewhere between 270 and 300 people in attendance.  In addition, there were 79 people who filled out 
the online surveys at https://www.letstalkchatham-kent.ca/.  At the meeting, members of the public got to hear the 
consultants speak about the overall NRCan funded research and the Chatham-Kent study in particular.  The consultants 
also spoke about climate change in general and how it may impact Chatham-Kent in particular.  The presentations were 
then followed by a question and answer session.   
 
The public posting for the next public information sessions to be held on June 19th and 20th follows: 
 
Next Round of Community Meetings Chatham-Kent Lake Erie Shoreline Study ς public posting 
 
The Chatham-Kent Lake Erie Study Team has now completed the research portion of the work on the future impacts of 
climate change on coastal storms and we want to present the results to the public. First, we will summarize the results 
of the erosion and flooding vulnerability assessment, along with the risk to existing buildings and infrastructure. A 
facilitated question and answer session will follow. Then, the Study Team wants to engage participants in discussions on 
ά.ǳƛƭŘƛƴƎ /ƻƳƳǳƴƛǘȅ wŜǎƛƭƛŜƴŎŜέ ŀƴŘ ǿƘŀǘ ŀŘŀǇǘŀǘƛƻƴ ǎǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ƴŜŜŘŜŘ ǘƻ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘ ǘƘƛǎ ƎƻŀƭΦ {Ƴŀƭƭ ōǊŜŀƪ-out 
groups will be used to explore long-term solutions to the erosion and flooding challenges along the Lake Erie shoreline. 
The meeting will conclude with a summary discussion of the break-out group recommendations and next steps for the 
study. 
 
Due to the interest in the study, four (4) separate consultation sessions have been scheduled over two days. The same 
information will be presented at each session. The meeting session details are as follows: 
 
Date: Wednesday, June 19, 2019 
Times: Session 1 - 1:30 pm to 4:00 pm 
Session 2 - 6:00 pm to 8:30 pm 
Location: Erieau Fire Station #14, Multi-Purpose Room 
780 Ross Lane, Erieau 
 
Date: Thursday, June 20, 2019 
Times: Session 3 - 9:30 am to 12:00 pm 
Session 4 - 1:30 pm to 4:00 pm 
Location: Erieau Fire Station #14, Multi-Purpose Room 
780 Ross Lane, Erieau 
 
Due to capacity limits, space for each session is limited. Therefore, we are asking that people please register for a 
specific session by calling 519-360-1998, by Friday, June 14, 2019. 
 
For more information, please visit: www.letstalkchatham-kent.ca 
 

 

 

https://www.letstalkchatham-kent.ca/
http://www.letstalkchatham-kent.ca/


31 | P a g e 
 

Chatham-Kent Lake Erie Shoreline Study 

 
 

 
9.3.2) Secondary Plan for Lighthouse Cove, Town of Lakeshore 

 
Work continues on the Secondary Plan for Lighthouse Cove.  LTVCA staff have compiled a substantial amount of 
background information related to the flooding hazard and provided it to the consultants.   
 
In addition, LTVCA staff attended the public open house held at the Lions Community Park in Lighthouse Cove on the 
evening of May 5th.  The LTVCA set up a table with historical photos, technical reports and information brochures.  The 
format of the evening was originally intended to be more informal with attendees able to visit several displays and talk 
to the consultants, municipal staff, and CA staff.  However, the turnout was overwhelming with approximately 133 in 
attendance.  In order to manage the number of people it was decided to hold a more organized question and answer 
session with Linda McKinlay facilitating.          
 
9.3.3) Planning and Regulations 

 
Planning 
 
From the first of April through to the end of May, there have been 49 planning submissions reviewed by staff with 
respect to Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act and Ontario Regulation 152/06.  There have also been 127 
responses to telephone inquiries that staff have responded to as well as numerous email responses to inquiries. 
 

Planning Numbers 2017 totals 2018 totals 2019 Jan-Mar totals Apr-May totals 

Chatham-Kent 227 185 30 23 

Elgin 86 94 12 16 

Essex 29 58 5 1 

Middlesex 57 55 12 9 

Total Numbers 399 328 69 49 

 
Erieau Open House Meeting 
 
The Harbour Master for Erieau, Jeff Vidler, requested that a meeting similar to the one held in Shrewsbury on April 3, 
2019, which LTVCA regulations staff participated in be held for Erieau as well.  The open house will be specific to 
clarifying regulations in and around Rondeau Bay and Lake Erie.  A date will be arranged for later in the summer, and Mr. 
Vidler will arrange to have staff from the Municipality of Chatham-Kent, the Ministry of Natural Recourses and Forestry, 
the Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks and the Department of Fisheries and Oceans Canada along with 



32 | P a g e 
 

LTVCA staff to provide information on each of our respected mandates and regulations in the area to local residents.  A 
question and answer period will follow.   
 
Permitting 
 
Since the last board update on 18 April 2019 and up to 31 May 2019, staff had received an additional 74 permit 
applications with respect to Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act and Ontario Regulation 152/06.  Of the 215 
permit applications received in the first five months of 2019, all but five had been approved by staff.  Three of those five 
applications were still open and being reviewed by staff or are awaiting further information to be supplied by the 
applicant.  The remaining two of those five applications required Hearings in front of the Executive Committee as the 
application proposals were not compliant with board-approved policies. 
 
The two hearings were held on 26 April 2019 where one application was approved with conditions and the other was 
refused.  The details of the applications and the decisions can be found in the Executive Committee meeting agenda and 
minutes packages. 
 
The graph below illustrates how the number of permit applications has been increasing over the years.  The orange bar 
indicates the number of permits received in the first five months of 2019.  With seven months left in the year, it will 
become the fourth year in a row that records are broken for number of permit applications received, reviewed, and 
processed. 
 

 
 
Below are some Section 28 Permitting statistics for 2019: 
 
ü Three habitat/stewardship projects in a LTVCA regulated area have been received and approved with their 

application fees waived; 
ü 98 properties were surveyed for permit and official plan flood proofing requirements; 
ü 76% of all applications were within Chatham-Kent and 11% were within Lakeshore; 
ü 63% of the applications were for private property owners for projects such as construction or modification of 

structures, shoreline protection repairs, and/or bank alterations; 
ü 30% of applications were for municipal projects (drainage or infrastructure); and, 
ü Total of permit application fees = $47,050.00 (average of $218.84 per permit). 



33 | P a g e 
 

Permit Processing Timelines 
 
From the date of written confirmation of a complete application, conservation authorities are to make a decision (i.e. 
recommendation to approve or referred to a Hearing) with respect to a permit application and pursuant to the 
Conservation Authorities Act within 30 days for a minor application and 90 days for a major application.  If a decision has 
not been rendered by the conservation authority within the appropriate timeframe, the applicant can submit a request 
ŦƻǊ ŀŘƳƛƴƛǎǘǊŀǘƛǾŜ ǊŜǾƛŜǿ ōȅ ǘƘŜ /!h ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜƴΣ ƛŦ ƴƻǘ ǎŀǘƛǎŦƛŜŘΣ ōȅ ǘƘŜ [¢±/!Ωǎ .ƻŀǊŘ ƻŦ 5ƛǊŜŎǘƻǊǎΦ  ¢ƘŜ ōŜƭƻǿ ǘŀōƭŜ 
documents the average number of days it takes staff to issue a permit to the applicant from the day the application is 
ŦƛǊǎǘ ǊŜŎŜƛǾŜŘ ŀƴŘ ŦǊƻƳ ǘƘŜ Řŀȅ ŀ άŎƻƳǇƭŜǘŜέ ŀǇǇƭƛŎŀǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ǊŜŎŜƛǾŜŘΦ  5ŀǘŀ ƛǎ ŦǊƻƳ нлмр ŀƴŘ ǳǇ ǘƻ ом aŀȅ нлмфΦ 
 

 Year 2019 

 2015 2016 2017 2018 (Up to May 31st) 

Average # of Days to 
Review Since a Partial 
Application is Received 

26 11 7 13 24 

Average # of Days to 
Review Since a 
Complete Application 
is Received 

17 5 5 9 18 

 
The above table indicates that application review and processing times between 2015 and 2016 have decreased which is 
generally attributed to the changing roles and responsibilities of the Regulations Technician, a change in personnel, and 
the hiring of a Water Quality Specialist.  Since 2016, the # of days to process a permit has been increasing which is 
generally attributed to the fact that the number of permit applications received by this office has continually been 
increasing year after year (more volume to review and process).  Thus far in 2019, the turnaround time for permits 
ranges between 0 days and 112 days from receipt of a complete application with the average being 18 days. 
 
Since the last board update, the average turnaround time for permits has decreased from 20 days to 18 days. 
 
Property Inquiries 
 
During the first three months of 2019, 589 property inquiries have been received and responded to by the Regulations 
Technician.  Some of the reasons that staff receive property inquiries include: 
 
ü Realtors looking to sell a property and wanting to know any potential restrictions for future buyers. 
ü People purchasing property who want to know more about the site-specific hazards and regulations. 
ü Landowners wanting to learn about best management practices specific to their property. 
ü Landowners wanting specific information on what is permitted in regulated areas. 
ü Insurance companies looking for floodplain information. 
ü Municipal staff or utility companies planning future projects. 

 
9.3.4) Section 28 Enforcement 

In the first three months of 2019, 7 new complaints / tips were received from the public about possible Section 28 
enforcement issues.  Six of the issues are violations of the Conservation Authorities Act and Ontario Regulation 152/06 
with two of those issues being resolved through a Violation Clearance Permit and a third being resolved voluntarily.  On-
going enforcement issues from 2016, 2017, and 2018 were also monitored and continue to be dealt with.  LTVCA staff 
continue to work towards the rehabilitation of the wetland involved in the 2016 court case with meetings with the 
ŘŜŦŜƴŘŀƴǘΩǎ lawyer, agent, and consultants as well as on-site inspections. 

  



34 | P a g e 
 

9.3.5) O.Reg. 152/06 Permit Applications 

 

 
 


